
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Friday, 8 September 2023 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Committee Room 1, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 18 September 2023 at 

2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair), Alaa Al-Yousuf, Lidia Arciszewska, 

Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Jeff Haine, David Jackson, Tim Sumner, Dean Temple, 

Mark Walker  

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21 August 2023. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 7 - 28) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

 

Recommendation: 
That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Page  Application 

No. 

Address Planning 

Officer 

9-17 23/013226/FUL The Pump Depot, Field 

Assarts, Witney 

Kelly Murray 

18-23 23/01723/FUL Burford House Hotel, 99 

High Street, Burford 

Kate Adler 

24-28 23/01724/LBC Burford House Hotel, 99 

High Street, Burford 

Kate Adler 

 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 29 - 38) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in Committee Room 1, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB at 2.00pm on 

Monday 21 August 2023. 

 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Andrew Beaney, Jeff Haine, David 

Jackson, Elizabeth Poskitt, Tim Sumner, Dean Temple and Mark Walker. 

Officers: Max Thompson (Senior Democratic Services Officer), Joan Desmond (Principal 

Planner), Michelle Ouzman (Strategic Support Officer) and Abby Fettes (Development 

Manager). 

Other Councillors in attendance:  Nil. 

85 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for Absence were received from the following Members: 

Councillors Hugo Ashton, Alaa Al-Yousuf and Rizvana Poole. 

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt substituted for Councillor Hugo Ashton. 

86 Declarations of Interest  

There were no Declarations of Interest made by Members of the Committee. 

87 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The Minutes of the Previous Meeting, held on Monday 24 July 2023, were approved 

unanimously by the Committee, and signed by the Chair as a true & accurate record. 

88 Applications for Development  

23/00536/OUT – Land South of Hit Or Miss Farm, Banbury Road, Chipping Norton. 

Joan Desmond, Principal Planner, introduced the outline application for up to 90 residential 

dwellings, including up to 40% affordable housing, creation of new vehicular access off Banbury 
Road and provision of public open space with associated landscape planting, infrastructure, 

drainage measures, earthworks and all other associated works. 

The Principal Planner drew the Committee’s attention to comments detailed in the additional 

representations report, which had been circulated to Members prior to the meeting. 

Tim Burden addressed the Committee as the Agent for the application, which raised a point of 

clarification surrounding affordable housing numbers contained within the site. 

The Principal Planner continued with their presentation, which clarified the following points: 

 Location of site within open countryside; 

 Limitations of the Council’s 5 Year Housing Land Supply; 

 Policies relating to the site detailed within the National Planning Policy Framework 

(NPPF); 

 Creation of construction employment in the local area; 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

21/August2023 

 

 

 Benefits relating to the area’s local economy; 

 Supply of affordable housing within the area; 

 Levels of green infrastructure in the local area; 

 Agreement to development subject to legal agreements. 

The Chair then invited the Committee to discuss the application, which raised the following 

points: 

 Benefits of the proposed development to the local area; 

 Access to local provisions, such as education and disposal of fowl water & associated 

waste; 

 Highways and pedestrian accessibility; 

 Accessibility to public transport services; 

 Updated, visual impacts of the site; 

 Potential hazards associated with the local sports club; 

 Open spaces retained within the development of the site; 

 Traffic enhancement measures associated with the development; 

 Environmental benefits associated with the site; 

 Clarification on healthcare provisions for the local area. 

Councillor Mark Walker proposed that application 23/00536/OUT be approved subject to 

legal agreement, in line with officer recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor 

Elizabeth Poskitt and was put to a vote. There were 8 votes in favour, 1 against (Councillor 

Julian Cooper) and Nil abstentions. The vote carried.  

Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the application subject to legal agreement, in line with officer 

recommendations. 

 

23/00536/OUT – Land West of London Lane, Ascott-under-Wychwood, Oxfordshire. 

Joan Desmond, Principal Planner, introduced the outline application with all matters reserved 

(except for access), for the development of up to 40 residential dwellings (C3 use), including 

50% affordable housing, with vehicular access from London Lane. 

The application included the provision of associated public open space, alongside landscaping, 

drainage infrastructure, and associated works. 

The Principal Planner drew the Committee’s attention to comments detailed in the additional 

representations report, which had been circulated to Members prior to the meeting. The 

Principal Planner further advised the Committee that Refusal Reason 3, contained within the 

original officer report, was no longer applicable as the information had been submitted ahead 

of the application being considered. 

Councillor Brian Leach, Chair of Ascott-under-Wychwood Parish Council, addressed the 

Committee in support of the Officer Recommendations for Refusal of the application. 

Page 2Page 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

21/August2023 

 

 

Alan Divall addressed the Committee on behalf of the Agent for the application. 

The addresses to the Committee raised the following clarification points: 

 Housing numbers within the local area; 

 Previous use of the development site. 

The Principal Planner continued with their presentation, which clarified the following points: 

 Previous use of the development site; 

 Identification of housing needs within the local area; 

 Limitations of the Council’s 5 Year Housing Land Supply; 

 Location of site within Cotswolds National Landscape; 

 Adherence to policies contained within the NPPF; 

 Potential urbanisation of the local area. 

The Chair then invited the Committee to discuss the application, which raised the following 

points: 

 Robust recommendations for refusal contained within the original Officer report; 

 Provisions for treatment and disposal of fowl water & associated waste; 

 Impacts on the River Evenlode; 

 Effective drainage of excess surface water; 

 Heightened and historic flooding risks associated with the development site and the 

local area; 

 Lack of objections submitted by the Local Lead Flood Authority; 

 Insufficient capacity of sewage treatment works within the local area; 

 Lack of guaranteed access to fresh water provision. 

Specific reference was made by the Committee to the application’s heightened disregard to 

the water springs surrounding Ascott-under-Wychwood, and that the application did not 

comply with WODC Local Plan policies OS2, OS3, H2, EH7 EH8 and BC1. 

Councillor Julian Cooper proposed that application 23/01504/OUT be refused, in line with 

officer recommendations, with specific reference made to the disregard of Policies OS2, OS3, 

H2, EH7 EH8 and BC1. This was seconded by Councillor Jeff Haine, was put to a vote and was 

unanimously approved by the Committee.  

Committee Resolved to: 

1. Refuse the application, in line with officer recommendations, with specific reference 

made to the disregard of Policies OS2, OS3, H2, EH7 EH8 and BC1. 

REASON: The proposed development would fail to adequately manage flood risk resulting 

from the many springs surrounding the village and existing poor surface water drainage 

resulting in an increased risk of flooding, in conflict with Policies OS2, OS3, H2, EH7, EH8 and 

BC1 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and the relevant paragraphs of the 

NPPF. 

Page 3Page 5



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

21/August2023 

 

 

 

89 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The report giving details of applications, determined under delegated powers, and decisions 

taken to appeal, was received and noted by the Committee. 

 

Committee Resolved to: 

1. Note the report containing details of application, determined under delegated powers 

and appealed decisions. 

 

The Meeting closed at 3.26pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 4Page 6



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 18th September 2023 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Manager. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

9-17 

 

23/01326/FUL The Pump Depot Field Assarts 

Witney 

 

Kelly Murray 

 

18-23 

 

23/01723/FUL Burford House Hotel  99 High 

Street Burford  

 

Kate Alder 

 

 

24-28 

23/01724/LBC Burford House Hotel  99 High 

Street Burford  

 

Kate Alder 

 

  

Page 8



Application Number 23/01326/FUL 

Site Address The Pump Depot 

Field Assarts 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 9NQ 

 

Date 6th September 2023 

Officer Kelly Murray 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Asthal Parish Council 

Grid Reference 431658 E       213811 N 

Committee Date 18th September 2023 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Temporary change of use and operational development in association with business and storage 

operations (Retrospective). 

 

 

Page 9



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr Andrew Coles 

Land And Barn South East Of Home Farm 

Road Through Field Assarts 

Field Assarts 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 9NQ 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Env Health - Uplands No Comment Received. 

 

 

OCC Highways The application seeks a temporary use until the work on the 

adjacent building makes it available for use. The proposal will not 

result in an intensification of the permitted use of the site. 

 

The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of highway safety and convenience ) on the 

adjacent highway network 

 

Recommendation: 

  

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission 

 

 

Parish Council The Parish Council has given a detailed response to this application 

but wish to ensure clarity on key points. 

 

1. The council understands that planning permission has 

already been given for both the cladding of the barn and the 

change of use of the barn from agricultural to business use, 

but the land remains agricultural. 

 

2. The council objects to the siting of the temporary 

structures in their present position to the rear of residential 

properties. The invasion of privacy, noise and pollution is 

unacceptable to residents for 18 months. 

 

3. Should permission be granted on an alternative site, all 

temporary structures, including hard standing and roadways, 

must be removed and the land restored to pastureland after 

the specified 18 months. It is expected that the company 

can then work exclusively from the barn. The site would 

then be more in keeping with the rural location. 

 

Page 10



4. Highways must be consulted about the regular access of 

large articulated vehicles which is currently causing a traffic 

hazard. 

 

5. Provision for the removal of sewage and provision for safe 

storage of potential pollutants must be specified. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 82 letters of objection and comment have been received, including one letter from a group of 

residents.: 

 

 Impact on local highways system - increased traffic and damage to roads and shared access 

 Not in keeping with the rural character of Field Assarts 

 Inappropriate site for industrial operations, no need demonstrated 

 Undesirable precedent for further development across the wider land 

 Harm to views within the AONB and from 'The Ridings' and 'Minster Ridings' 

 Too close to residential homes 

 Disruption from industrial machinery and idling vehicles including vibrations, noise and fumes 

 Privacy from the proximity to residential gardens 

 Anti-social operating hours - early mornings and late evening operations 

 Commercial waste, recycling and materials is stored in piles around the site not in 

designated bins 

 Inadequate infrastructure - foul waste disposal 

 Light pollution affecting residents and AONB dark skies  

 Loss of habitats and wildlife  

 Pollution form vehicle fumes  

 Contrary to policy 

 Flood risk 

 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1. The full covering letter can be read on the West Oxfordshire Planning website but extracts are 

included below: 

 

3.2 The company "Allsebrook Pumps Limited" was bought by the current 

owners in January 2017, their intent was to grow this business in the 

Oxfordshire area. In the first instance this meant renting existing premises. 

However their intention has always been to own their own premises, for 

security of tenure and financial viability in the longer term. 

 

3.3 Allsebrook Pumps bought the concrete barn site and surrounding farmland 

on 2nd December 2022. At that time, they were still in occupation of a rented 

site near Wendlebury, Oxfordshire. However, they needed to re-locate as a 

matter of urgency, and so were keen to get the former concrete barn internally 

converted to their pump depot as soon as possible, without which they would 

have no premises from which to continue to operate. 

Page 11



 

 

3.4 The overall economy within the West Oxfordshire District area generally 

fares better than that of the UK as a whole. However, we must by now all be 

aware that times are tougher than a few years ago, and within the planning 

rules, if a sustainable proposal can be encouraged and thus benefit the 

economy , we believe it should be encouraged. 

 

3.5 Allsebrook Pumps intend to be on site within the refurbished concrete barn 

for a considerable period of time, with no current end date envisaged. They 

want to establish themselves on this site, achieve very good relations with 

neighbours, and to this end we will be letting the Parish Council know we have 

submitted this application. 

 

3.6 The intention of the applicants is to abide by an agreed period of time, to 

clear the site in accordance with the advice of the Council, and to thereafter 

focus on the business of servicing and providing pumps. They aim to do so 

while being mindful of how the use affects the residents of Field Assarts. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

E1NEW Land for employment 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

NPPF 2021 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH2 Landscape character 

T4NEW Parking provision 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5. Background Information  

 

5.1. This is a retrospective application seeking temporary permission for a change of use and 

operational development in association with business and storage operations on land previously 

known as Land and Barn South East of Home Farm.   

 

5.2. The application site lies on the edge of Field Assarts, a hamlet 4.6 miles north of Witney.  It falls 

within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty ("AONB") and the Wychwood Project 

Area.  It is within 100m of a listed building known as "Wychwood Farmhouse" 

 

5.3. The site is part of a wider area of land under the ownership of the applicant. On this wider area 

there is a former agricultural building known as the "concrete barn".  This has permission, 

pursuant to an application made in 2021, for a change of use to a flexible B1 (business)/ B8 

(storage) use.  That application was made under Schedule 2, Part 3, Class R of the Town and 

Country (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 ("GPDO").  Permission had 

already been granted in 2020 to clad the building.   

 

Page 12



5.4. The application site lies approximately 28 metres to the west of the concrete barn. The 

development has resulted in the demolition of a 'Nissen' hut and a concrete base has been laid in 

its place. A large area of hard-surfacing has also been installed around this concrete base which 

together form the base for five storage containers, four of the containers have been arranged to 

create a central workshop area and a canvas shelter has been installed to cover this. In addition a 

temporary toilet block and a temporary office block have been sited and a hard-surfaced access 

road has been laid. Drainage pipes for the toilet block have been installed to allow emptying of the 

foul waste storage tank from a tap at the access. The application site is separated from the 

surrounding land by heras fencing.  

 

5.5. The current lawful use of the site is agricultural and apart from the concrete barn, the 

surrounding land to the east and south remains agricultural. The site is accessed via an access way 

which is shared with the neighbouring dwellings.  

 

5.5. Immediately to the west of the site, there is a field boundary composed of hedges. The site is 

open to the south and the east and is visible when travelling north from Minster Lovell along 

Minster Ridings and also partially when travelling west along The Ridings. The northern boundary 

of the site consists of residential dwellings. The rear garden boundary of three of these dwellings 

is approximately 10 metres from the edge of the site, one is located adjacent to the entrance of 

the shared access. There are an additional four dwellings that do not share an immediate 

boundary with the site but are within 50 metres of the edge of the site and have a partial view of 

the site.  

 

Relevant planning history 

 

5.7.  

 20/03553/CLASSR - Notification for the change the use of less than 150 square metres of the 

building - Raise no objection  

 20/02099/FUL - The cladding and recladding of an agricultural barn and associated works – 

Approve 

 21/00070/PN56 - Change of use of building and land within its curtilage from use as an 

agricultural building to a flexible use, initially falling within Class B1 (business) and Class B8 

(storage). - Prior approval not required. 

 

Current position 

 

5.8. The applicant bought the site in 2022 in order to carry out his business, Allsebrook Pumps.  He 

has stated that a temporary base of operations was required during the cladding works and he 

was not aware of the need to obtain permission to carry out the works on the adjacent land.  He 

has confirmed that the works to set up the temporary base have been completed and no further 

changes to the site are planned.  The works to convert the concrete barn have begun and are due 

to be completed by the end of December 2023.  The operations will be moved into the concrete 

barn once the cladding works are completed. 

 

Consideration 

   

5.9. Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application 

are:  

 Principle of development 

Page 13



 Siting, design and scale of operations 

 Residential amenity 

 Impact on the AONB 

 Highways  

 

These are to be considered in the context of the temporary nature of the application, the extant 

permissions for the concrete barn and any planning-related benefits that might arise from granting 

temporary consent. 

 

Principle of Development 

 

5.10. Since the concrete barn has consent granted under the GPDO for a change of use from an 

agricultural building to Class E the principle of a change to this use is accepted for the barn itself 

and for a limited amount of curtilage.  This is not however the case for the application site, whose 

lawful use continues to be agricultural.   

 

Siting, design and visual impact 

 

5.11. The application site is located on the edge of Field Assarts, which falls within the small villages, 

hamlets and open countryside category of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 settlement 

hierarchy. As described above the site is open to the east and the south but is highly visible from 

the dwellings to the north and is moderately visible from the surrounding highway system.  

 

5.12. The industrial storage containers, hard surfacing and temporary office and toilet blocks are not 

considered to form a logical complement to the existing scale or pattern of development, nor to 

the character of the area which was previously an undeveloped edge of an isolated hamlet.  The 

commercial use with its associated storage being sited in an open, rural location is visually 

unacceptable and inappropriate were this to be considered on a permanent basis.  

 

Residential Amenity  

 

5.13. The site is within close proximity of at least 4 dwellings, with an additional 4 dwellings 

potentially being affected by the operations.  Representations have been received from occupants 

of dwellings stating that the operations are causing noise and vibrations and there are fumes from 

idling vehicles on site.   

 

5.14. As previously stated, the application site is some 28 metres distant from the concrete barn 

which has permission granted under the GPDO for light industrial use.  This is a category of use 

that is considered suitable to be carried out in a residential area without detriment to 

surrounding amenity.  Provided the business operations do indeed fall within this class, they are 

permitted to be carried out within the concrete barn and could lawfully be carried on now, 

theoretically even without any form of cladding or other enclosure.  When the barn is cladded, 

however, any noise and disturbance arising from normal operations should diminish.  Some of the 

noise and disturbance currently experienced would be an inevitable part of the conversion of the 

barn and will cease once this is complete.   

 

Highways 

 

5.15. The vehicular movements occurring on the site would appear to be primarily from the business 

operations of Allsebrook Pumps, however there are also construction vehicles delivering and 

Page 14



removing materials which initially related to the construction of the temporary site and are now 

associated with the conversion works.    

 

5.16. There is currently one permanent employee who parks on the application site; whilst other 

small vehicles used by engineers and delivery drivers enter and leave the site throughout the day 

and are only on site for limited periods of time.  This pattern will continue once the operations 

are transferred to the barn.  

 

5.17. Representations have been received expressing concern around large vehicles entering and 

leaving and causing damage to the access as well as an increase overall in the number of large 

vehicles using the highway system. However, as the movement of vehicles are associated with 

either the conversion works or the business operations which will in due course occur in the 

barn, it is difficult to argue that they are at a level that is unacceptable.    

 

5.18. For the reason that the temporary use sought by this application will not result in an 

intensification of the permitted use of the wider site, County Highways have not objected to the 

application.  As such, the development is considered acceptable in highways terms and complies 

with policy T4 (parking provision).  

 

Cotswold AONB 

 

5.19. Paragraph 176 of the NPPF requires great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. In this case the high visibility of the site 

means that it has an impact on views within the AONB.  

 

5.20. Whilst there are no public rights of way nearby from which the site can be seen and views of 

the site from the west are limited, neither the use nor the associated operational development is 

considered to conserve or enhance the AONB.  The grouping of the temporary structures with 

the accompanying herris fencing and hard-standing are unsightly and highly detrimental to the 

open, rural character of the settlement and to views both towards and from the site.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.21. For the reasons given above, the development is considered to be contrary to policy; it has 

harmful landscape visual impacts and fails to conserve the character of the AONB.  There is also 

no doubt that the creation of this temporary base and to some extent the ongoing operations - 

sited, as they are, in the open, fully visible and proximate to nearby dwellings - have caused noise 

and disturbance that would not usually be acceptable in a rural hamlet on the edge of open 

countryside in the AONB.  There are certain contextual factors, however that Officers believe 

should be considered when determining the level of harm for the purposes of deciding this 

application.  First, the concrete barn has permissions for light industrial use and for the carrying 

out of cladding works.  The permitted use of the barn entails internal conversion and then an 

ongoing level of activity thereafter concomitant with the carrying out of a light industrial use.  The 

permission was granted under the GPDO and imposes no restrictions as to how the business is 

carried out, or as to vehicular activity or hours of operation, provided it falls within the 

classification of light industrial use.  Noise and disturbance that might ordinarily arise from these 

lawful activities are likely to continue (albeit largely from inside the barn) once the barn has been 

converted.  The temporary activities that the applicant proposes to carry on a short distance to 

the west of the barn must therefore be considered in that context.   

 

Page 15



5.22. Conversion of a barn and the carrying out of associated works will always cause a level of 

disturbance during the conversion process.  In this case, the level of disruption has been worse 

because of the unlawful setting up of the temporary site and the fact that the activities as a whole 

are spread over a larger area than the footprint of the barn itself.  The construction noise is, 

however, temporary and will not continue beyond the completion of the conversion works 

necessary to enable the business to be carried on within the confines of the barn.   

 

5.23. A further consideration is that Schedule 2 Part 4 Class A of the GPDO grants permission 

enabling land adjacent to a development site to be used for a temporary period in association with 

that development.  There is no exception made for development in the AONB.  Whilst the PD 

right would not allow the carrying out of a business, it would permit storage of equipment and 

building materials for use in the conversion.  Some of this equipment and materials are currently 

being housed within the barn itself but the applicant would be entitled to use the application site 

for this purpose which might give rise to very similar visual impacts in terms of storage of 

containers, equipment and pallets in the open and in full view of nearby dwellings.  Equally, it 

would involve lorry and van movements going to and from these stored items in the course of the 

conversion which would be likely to give rise to similar types and levels of noise and disturbance 

as residents are currently experiencing. 

 

5.24. Officers consider that unfettered permission for the continued use of this site would not be 

acceptable.  By granting a temporary consent the Local Planning Authority would be able to 

exercise a reasonable level of control over how the site is used in a way that might minimise 

disruption to residents over the coming months until the conversion was complete.    

 

5.25. Officers note concerns expressed by objectors that any consent may enable the business 

operations to expand across surrounding land.  As explained above, however, the development 

would not be an acceptable use of land in this location on a permanent basis and any incursion 

beyond the application site area (that was not within the barn or its curtilage) would be 

susceptible to enforcement action.  Since this application is being considered on its particular 

merits, an approval would be unlikely to create a precedent unless very similar circumstances 

applied in another case and there were no relevant distinguishing factors. 

 

Summary 

 

5.26. Taking into consideration the matters set out above, your Officers consider the development 

causes unacceptable harm to the AONB which would not be permissible on a permanent basis, 

being contrary to policy and to the NPPF.  In this case however, there are material considerations 

which are considered to outweigh the identified conflict with the development plan.  These are:  

(i) the applicant's fall-back permitted development rights which he is entitled to exercise in 

association with the conversion of the barn; (ii) the light industrial use for the barn which is in 

close vicinity of the application site and for which the applicant already has unconditional consent; 

and (iii) the advantages inherent in being able to impose (and quickly enforce through a breach of 

condition notice (for which there is no right of appeal)) conditions to regulate the use if 

permission is granted.  In this case these factors are considered to reduce the level of harm to an 

acceptable level but only on a temporary basis until the conversion works are completed and to a 

reasonable timeframe.  Accordingly, Officers recommend approval subject to the conditions 

proposed below.  

 

 

 

Page 16



 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The use hereby permitted shall be for a limited period being the period of 5 months from the 

date of this decision. The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued, all structures and 

hardstanding removed and the land restored to its former condition on or before the end of 5 

months from the date of this decision. 

 

REASON: This development would not be appropriate in this location on a permanent basis. 

 

2. No items shall be stored on the site except within the structures authorised by this permission. 

 

REASON: To protect the residential and visual amenities of the locality and to ensure there is 

no interference with the circulation and manoeuvring of vehicles on the site. 

 

3. The temporary use hereby permitted shall take place only during the hours of 

0830 - 17:30 on weekdays only  

 

REASON: In order to protect residential amenity  

 

4. No external lighting shall be put in place or operated on the site at any time, other than lighting 

the details of which have been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  Such details shall include location, height, type and direction of light sources 

and intensity of illumination. Any lighting which is so installed shall not thereafter be altered 

without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area and to protect residential 

amenity. 

 

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 

or without modification), the use permitted is for light industrial Class E only (as set out in the 

Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as amended). No development shall be 

carried out other than that expressly authorised by this permission.  

 

REASON: Control is needed on the site as further development is likely to be inappropriate due 

to the temporary nature of the permission, the unsustainable location, impact on neighbouring 

amenity, residential amenity and visual amenity within the AONB. 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Kelly Murray 

Telephone Number: 01993 861674 

Date: 6th September 2023 

  

Page 17



Application Number 23/01723/FUL 

Site Address Burford House Hotel  

99 High Street 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4QA 

Date 6th September 2023 

Officer Kate Alder 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425179 E       212177 N 

Committee Date 18th September 2023 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Retention and staining of front door (partially retrospective) 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



 

 

Applicant Details: 

Mr S Nolan 

Burford House Hotel  

99 High Street 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4QA 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council M Andrews, Town Clerk The Council object to the door, it was 

agreed to be a glass door only. Prior to the previous listed building 

approval there were no doors. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No third party representations have been received to date. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicant has outlined their position within the associated Planning Statement: We believe 

that the stained front door would be more in keeping with the historic building and its setting 

with the Conservation Area. As result, the proposed works would not have a detrimental impact 

on the Heritage Asset or the Conservation Area. The pre-existing internal stud partition walls 

were 20th century additions and were not integral elements to the building's historic or listed 

status. As a result, the wall's removal did not have a detrimental effect on the Heritage Asset. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

NPPF 2021 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT  

 

Background information 

 

5.1 This application seeks planning permission for the retention and staining of  a new front door. 

The application site relates to an end of terrace Grade 2 Listed Building currently in use as a 

hotel, located on the High Street in the centre of the rural service centre of Burford Town. The 

Page 19



property is situated within the Burford Conservation Area and the Cotswolds Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

5.2 This application has been submitted as a result of ongoing enforcement investigations at the site 

which began in 2017. In 2019 applications 19/01293/FUL (Alterations to install a new glass 

entrance door) and 19/01294/LBC (External and internal alterations to include removal of interior 

partition wall, create doorway and block up doorway (retrospective) and install a new glass 

entrance door to front elevation) were approved on 09/07/2019. However, the front door has 

not been replaced as proposed and the timber door remains installed. An application for Listed 

Building Consent for the retention and staining of front door and alteration to internal partition 

wall (partially retrospective) (23/01724/LBC) also appears on the schedule.  

 

 

Relevant Planning History 

 

19/01293/FUL - Alterations to install a new glass entrance door - PLANNING PERMISSION 

APPROVED 09/07/2019 (not undertaken) 

 

19/01294/LBC - External and internal alterations to include removal of interior partition wall, create 

doorway and block up doorway (retrospective) and install a new glass entrance door to front 

elevation - LISTED BUILDING CONSENT GRANTED 09/07/2019 (retrospective part undertaken 

only) 

 

17/00071/PENF - Alleged unauthorised works to a listed building - alterations to the front door (new 

frame and glass door fitted in the original archway) and removal of internal wall. Alleged 

unauthorised signage. - ONGOING ENFORCEMENT PENDING CONSIDERATION - the 2019 

applications and the current 2023 applications arose from this planning enforcement investigation. 

The front door has not been replaced and a larger opening than that permitted under the 2019 

applications has been made between hall and dining room. 

 

Proposed Development 

 

5.3 The proposed part-retrospective development relates to the retention and staining of the new 

wooden front door which does not match the previously approved full glass design.  

 

5.4 The staining of the wood framing of the current front door would be completed with Osmo 

Natural Woodstain 905 Patina, to match the colour of the first floor timbers and window frames. 

 

5.5 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of this application are: 

 

 The Principle of Development; 

 

 The Impact on Heritage Assets and Design;  

 

 The Impact on Visual Amenity. 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

Principle of Development 

 

5.6 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for 

planning permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

provides that the local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development 

plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations. In the case of 

West Oxfordshire, the Development Plan is the Local Plan 2031 adopted in September 2018. 

 

5.7 The proposed part-retrospective development is located within the curtilage of Burford House 

Hotel, 99 High Street, Burford. Therefore, the principle of development is considered acceptable 

subject to design and amenity issues being carefully considered against the adopted West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. In terms of other material considerations, policy OS2 of the Local 

Plan states that all development should form a logical compliment to the existing character of the 

area, conserve and enhance the historic and natural environment and not have a harmful impact 

on the amenity of existing occupants. Therefore, the development can be considered acceptable 

subject to meeting these requirements. Each is assessed in turn below. 

 

Impact on Heritage Assets and Design 

 

5.8 Officers are required to take account of section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in considering whether to grant 

planning permission for any works the local planning authority shall have special regard to the 

desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of special architectural or 

historic interest which it possesses. This duty is reflected in policy EH11 of the Local Plan. 

 

5.9 Within a Conservation Area, Officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that, with 

respect to buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  Further the 

paragraphs of section 16 'Conserving and enhancing the historic environment ' of the NPPF are 

relevant to consideration of the application. This duty is reflected in policy EH10 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.  

 

5.10 Paragraph 176 of the NPPF 2021 requires great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Policies OS2 and EH1 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 give great weight to conserving the landscape and scenic beauty.  

 

5.11 Policy OS4 of West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 also refers to high quality design where 

buildings and features of historic significance should be conserved or enhanced and new 

development should demonstrate high quality design by having regard to design advice in the 

West Oxfordshire Design Guide and Conservation Area Appraisals.  

 

5.12 Policy EH9 considers the historic environment more broadly and the tests for determining 

proposals that will or have the potential to affect heritage assets. This is reflected in paragraphs 

199-208 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

 

5.13 The historic significance of Burford House Hotel (previously known as 'Corner House Hotel') is 

stated within the associated Listing Entry No. 1223879 which outlines the history and grading as 

Page 21



such: 'BURFORD AND UPTON HIGH STREET AND SIGNET (East Side) SP2512 (Enlargement) 

Corner House Hotel; House restored as hotel. Early C16 but entirely restored in early C20. 

Rubble on ground floor, timber-frame on 1st floor, Cotswold stone roof. 2 storeys and attic; 4 

hipped dormers, rubble end chimneys. 1st floor close-studded with 4 windows, 3- and 4- light 

arch-headed lancets with moulded heads, moulded strings over ground floor. 2 windows on 

ground floor, 4-light chamfered mullion type with king mullions. Central Tudor arched doorway 

(also new.). Right hand ground floor corner chamfered back with mullion window on splay and 2 

Tudor arches (to West and to South) supported on chamfered corner pier. Gabled return to 

Witney Street also looks C20. 3-bay 2-storey-and-attic extension to West is probably C17 though 

with C20 casements; a further 2-storey extension is probably C17 or early C18. Interior ground 

floor room retains massive probably C16 spine beam with pyramidal stops.' 

 

5.14 With regard to the front door, the Conservation Officer notes that this was fitted several years 

ago without consent, and being framed in light coloured timber, it attracted negative attention 

from the Town Council. The Council then gave consent for it to be replaced with a structural 

glass door (19/01293/FUL & 19/01294/LBC), although this was not installed. The Conservation 

Officer undertook a site visit in May 2023 in which they advised that if the existing door framing 

was stained in a dark tone, it would chime with other external joinery, and it would also visually 

recede into the lobby.  

 

5.15 In terms of impact on the conservation area, AONB and its immediate setting, Officers consider 

the development to amount to less than substantial harm. Officers consider that the staining of 

the door frame would maintain the appearance of the heritage asset which would only be viewed 

in it immediate context. Therefore, given its nature and location within the immediate and wider 

surrounds, the development conforms to policies OS2, OS4, EH1, EH9, EH10, ad EH11 of the 

Local Plan. 

 

The Impact on Visual Amenity 

 

5.16  Paragraph 130 of the NPPF 2021, states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that 

development is sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation 

or change.  Given the nature of the development, officers are of the opinion that the proposed 

would not give rise to any adverse impacts in regards to visual amenity. 

 

Conclusion 

 

5.17 In conclusion, the proposed development is considered to comply with policy OS2, OS4, EH1, 

EH9, EH10, and EH11 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan (2011-2031) and Section 16 of the 

NPPF. The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

2. Within 1 month of the date of this permission the front door frame shall be stained with OSMO 

Natural Woodstain 905 Patina, and thereafter retained as such. 

 

Page 22



REASON: To protect the historic character and appearance of the Listed Building. 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Kate Alder 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 6th September 2023 

  

Page 23



Application Number 23/01724/LBC 

Site Address Burford House Hotel  

99 High Street 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4QA 

Date 6th September 2023 

Officer Kate Alder 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Burford Parish Council 

Grid Reference 425179 E       212177 N 

Committee Date 18th September 2023 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  

 

 

Application Details: 

Retention and staining of front door and alteration to internal partition wall (partially retrospective) 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

Applicant Details: 

Mr S Nolan 

Burford House Hotel  

99 High Street 

Burford 

Oxfordshire 

OX18 4QA 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

Bryan Martin, Senior Conservation and Design Officer The front 

lobby door:  This was actually fitted several years ago without 

consent, and being framed in light coloured timber, it attracted 

negative attention from the town council. We gave consent for it to 

be replaced with a structural glass door, although this was never 

installed. On our site visit in May I advised that if the existing door 

framing was stained in a dark tone, it would chime with other 

external joinery, and it would also visually recede into the lobby. As 

you will see they have now stained the door framing, and in my 

view this is now an acceptable compromise. 

 

The internal partition:  They have removed a large part of the 

partition wall on the right as you enter from the lobby, without 

consent. From memory, the lost fabric was just plain walling, with 

no particularly interesting features, but it was nonetheless a 

significant part of a listed building. Anyway, the fabric has now gone, 

and whilst we could ask for it to be reinstated, the replacement 

fabric would of course be new. It is also notable that the original 

form is readable in the remaining nibs and the down-stand beam - 

and in addition, there is probably a strong business case for the 

open-plan layout. Bearing all of this in mind we concluded that, very 

much on balance, we could grant retrospective consent for removal 

of the wall. 

 

 

Parish Council M Andrews, Town Clerk The Council object to the door, it was 

agreed to be a glass door only. Prior to the previous listed building 

approval there were no doors. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 No third party representations have been received to date. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The applicant has outlined their position within the associated Planning Statement: We believe 

that the stained front door would be more in keeping with the historic building and its setting 

with the Conservation Area. As result, the proposed works would not have a detrimental impact 

Page 25



on the Heritage Asset or the Conservation Area. The pre-existing internal stud partition walls 

were 20th century additions and were not integral elements to the building's historic or listed 

status. As a result, the wall's removal did not have a detrimental effect on the Heritage Asset. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NPPF 2021 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5. PLANNING ASSESSMENT  

 

5.1 These are proposals for the for the retention and staining of the front door and alterations to 

internal partition wall (partially retrospective) at the Grade II Listed Building Burford House 

Hotel, 99 High Street, Burford (previously known as 'The Corner House Hotel'). The 

development concerns works undertaken within the curtilage of a Listed Building that are deemed 

to affect the character of the building as a building of special interest. Planning permission is 

considered under application reference 23/01723/FUL for the retention and staining of the front 

door, which also appears on the schedule. 

 

5.2 This application has been submitted as a result of ongoing enforcement investigations at the site 

which began in 2017. In 2019 applications 19/01293/FUL (Alterations to install a new glass 

entrance door) and 19/01294/LBC (External and internal alterations to include removal of interior 

partition wall, create doorway and block up doorway (retrospective) and install a new glass 

entrance door to front elevation) were approved on 09/07/2019. However, the front door has 

not been replaced as proposed and a larger opening without the fixed glazing or pillar permitted 

under the 2019 applications has been made between the entrance hall and dining room. 

 

5.3 Officers are required to take account of section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in considering whether to grant 

listed building consent for any works the local planning authority shall have special regard to the 

desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of special architectural or 

historic interest which it possesses. 

 

5.4 Section 16 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in determining 

applications, local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining or 

enhancing the significance of heritage assets. In particular, paragraph 199 states that when 

considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage 

asset - such as a Listed Building, or Conservation Area - great weight should be given to the 

asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). Any 

harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or 

destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and convincing 

justification (paragraph 200). Paragraph 202 states that where a development proposal will lead to 

less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should harm 

Page 26



should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, where appropriate, securing its 

optimal viable use.  

 

5.5 Officers are required to take account of section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in considering whether to grant 

planning permission for any works the local planning authority shall have special regard to the 

desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of special architectural or 

historic interest which it possesses. This duty is reflected in policy EH11 of the Local Plan. 

 

5.6 Within a Conservation Area, Officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that, with 

respect to buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  Further the 

paragraphs of section 16 'Conserving and enhancing the historic environment ' of the NPPF are 

relevant to consideration of the application. This duty is reflected in policy EH10 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.  

 

5.7 Paragraph 176 of the NPPF 2021 requires great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing 

landscape beauty in Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Policies OS2 and EH1 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 give great weight to conserving the landscape and scenic beauty.  

 

5.8 Policy OS4 of West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 also refers to high quality design where 

buildings and features of historic significance should be conserved or enhanced and new 

development should demonstrate high quality design by having regard to design advice in the 

West Oxfordshire Design Guide and Conservation Area Appraisals.  

 

5.9 Policy EH9 considers the historic environment more broadly and the tests for determining 

proposals that will or have the potential to affect heritage assets. This is reflected in paragraphs 

199-208 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

 

5.10 The historic significance of Burford House Hotel (previously known as 'Corner House Hotel') is 

stated within the associated Listing Entry No. 1223879 which outlines the history and grading as 

such: 'BURFORD AND UPTON HIGH STREET AND SIGNET (East Side) SP2512 (Enlargement) 

Corner House Hotel; House restored as hotel. Early C16 but entirely restored in early C20. 

Rubble on ground floor, timber-frame on 1st floor, Cotswold stone roof. 2 storeys and attic; 4 

hipped dormers, rubble end chimneys. 1st floor close-studded with 4 windows, 3- and 4- light 

arch-headed lancets with moulded heads, moulded strings over ground floor. 2 windows on 

ground floor, 4-light chamfered mullion type with king mullions. Central Tudor arched doorway 

(also new.). Right hand ground floor corner chamfered back with mullion window on splay and 2 

Tudor arches (to West and to South) supported on chamfered corner pier. Gabled return to 

Witney Street also looks C20. 3-bay 2-storey-and-attic extension to West is probably C17 though 

with C20 casements; a further 2-storey extension is probably C17 or early C18. Interior ground 

floor room retains massive probably C16 spine beam with pyramidal stops.' 

 

5.11 With regard to the front door, the Conservation Officer notes that this was fitted several years 

ago without consent, and being framed in light coloured timber, it attracted negative attention 

from the town council. The Council then gave consent for it to be replaced with a structural glass 

door (19/01293/FUL & 19/01294/LBC, APPROVED 09/07/2019), although this was not installed. 

The Conservation Officer undertook a site visit in May 2023 in which they advised that if the 

Page 27



existing door framing was stained in a dark tone, it would chime with other external joinery, and 

it would also visually recede into the lobby.  

 

5.12 In terms of the internal partition, its alteration was granted under Listed Building Consent 

(19/01294/LBC), although not to the design approved. The Conservation Officer notes that the 

applicant removed a large part of the partition wall on the right as you enter from the lobby, 

without consent. The lost fabric of the original partition wall was plain walling, with no particularly 

interesting features, but it was nonetheless a significant part of a listed building. The fabric has 

now gone, and reinstatement of the partition wall would be with new materials. It is also notable 

that the original form is readable in the remaining nibs and the down-stand beam. In addition, 

there is probably a strong business case for the open-plan layout. With consideration to all the 

points, the Conservation Officer concluded that, very much on balance, we could grant 

retrospective consent for removal of the wall.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.13 The Local Planning Authority has had special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, 

its setting, and any features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess, and to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the area. 

 

5.14 Taking into account the above matters it is considered that the works proposed will preserve 

the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building in accordance with Section 

16(2) of the 1990 Act. The significance of the designated heritage assets will be sustained, in 

accordance with Section 16 of the NPPF and so the application is recommended for approval, 

subject to conditions. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. Within 1 month of the date of this permission the front door frame shall be stained with OSMO 

Natural Woodstain 905 Patina, and thereafter retained as such. 

 

REASON: To protect the historic character and appearance of the Listed Building. 

 

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Kate Alder 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 6th September 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 15th August 2023 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



1.  21/02892/CND The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 4 (external window and door details), 6 (full surface water drainage 

scheme), 9 (full surface water drainage scheme), 11 (surface water prevention), 14 (nesting 

opportunities for birds), 15 (details of external lighting) and 17 (water consumption) of 

planning permission 20/02511/FUL 

15 North Street Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs D Cox 

 

 

2.  22/03280/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing workshop into annexe. Replacing roof over sunroom and garage with 

different material, new side pedestrian gateway 

Horseshoe House Horseshoe Lane Wootton 

Mr Matt Rippon 

 

 

3.  22/03504/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing workshop into annexe. Replacing roof over sunroom and garage with 

different material, new side pedestrian gateway 

Horseshoe House Horseshoe Lane Wootton 

Mr Matt Rippon 

 

 

4.  22/03549/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone S106 

  

Conversion of end bay of existing grounds maintenance barn to provide ancillary guest/staff 

accommodation. Provision of associated garden space, oil and bin store and car parking. 

The Coombes Great Rollright Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs F Watt 

 

 

5.  23/01116/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Demolition and replacement of existing dwelling. Erection of detached garage and log store. 

Alterations to access. All associated landscaping works and other operations (amended plans). 

Altarnun Fifield Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Potter 

 

 

Page 30



6.  23/01227/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone WDN 

  

Erection of an agricultural workers dwelling with associated works 

Land South West Of Radford Farm Buildings Radford Chipping Norton 

Mr Sam Parsons 

 

 

7.  23/01277/FUL Chadlington and Churchill WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a dwelling 

Land South East Of Anvil House Sidings Road Churchill 

Mr Colin Harris 

 

 

8.  23/01387/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Change of use of land to create additional service car parking spaces to the rear of the 

existing sales forecourt together with associated works. 

Wheelers Car Sales Ltd  Banbury Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Simon Tucker 

 

 

9.  23/01399/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal works to renovate 

58 High Street Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr Neil Round 

 

 

10.  23/01415/HHD Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of wooden shed at the rear of the property and installation of hazel trellis 

Woodside High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Maria Bustillo Martinez 

 

 

11.  23/01451/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of 2 Air Source Heat Pumps and integrated roof mounted Solar photovoltaic 

panels 

Waterloo Barn Laughton Hill Stonesfield 

Mr And Mrs Paul And Diane Bates 

 

 

Page 31



12.  23/01473/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton REF 

  

Conversion of stables/tack room into two bedroom living accommodation (Part 

Retrospective) 

South Lawn Farm South Lawn Swinbrook 

Mr David Cecil 

 

 

13.  23/01526/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing external signage, removal of ATM and infill existing aperture with 

stonework to match existing, removal of night safe face plate only and infill aperture with 

stonework to match existing, seal existing letter box internally. 

Barclays Bank  15 High Street Chipping Norton 

Barclays Bank Plc 

 

 

14.  23/01527/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to remove existing external signage, remove ATM and infill 

existing aperture with stonework to match existing, remove night safe face plate only and infill 

aperture with stonework to match existing, seal existing letter box internally, remove internal 

counters and all internal furniture and removal of a few stud partitions. 

Barclays Bank  15 High Street Chipping Norton 

Barclays Bank Plc 

 

 

15.  23/01542/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Amendments to fenestration to the main house and the proposed workshop (as 

21/01510/HHD) and alternative arrangements to side extension to garage 

The Beeches  10 Tanners Lane Burford 

Mr And Mrs Geoff And Karen Haines And Gadd 

 

 

16.  23/01640/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replace existing conservatory with new single storey extension and walkway link to 

utility/garage building together with replacement external joinery and front entrance canopy. 

Saddlers The Green Kingham 

Mr And Mrs Marcus Newman 

 

 

Page 32



17.  23/01641/S73 Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission 21/01967/HHD to allow reduced size 

and different design of pool house. 

Little Manor Church Hill Tackley 

Ms H Vukadinovic 

 

 

18.  23/01648/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey rear extension to the annexe to create kitchen/dining and convert the old 

kitchen space into a second bedroom together with associated works. 

Tamarisk 32 High Street Finstock 

Mrs Susan Proctor 

 

 

19.  23/01696/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (floodlighting and external lighting details) 7 (noise management 

plan) and 9 (full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 22/00015/FUL 

The Plough High Street Finstock 

Mr G Wallis 

 

 

20.  23/01694/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of air source heat pump and proposed new vehicular access. 

Orchard House Cozens Lane Kingham 

Ms H Mitchell 

 

 

21.  23/01697/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of a flat roof over porch with pitched roof and replacement of flat roof to 

pitched roof with dormer window 

1 Chartwell Drive Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Maria Campbell 

 

 

Page 33



22.  23/01700/HHD Freeland and Hanborough REF 

  

Erection of rear and side single storey extensions with rooflights 

Harlyn 145 Wroslyn Road Freeland 

Mr and Mrs P Holt 

 

 

23.  23/01708/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Adjustment to unauthorised front terrace along with installation of metal railings 

38 New Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Michael White 

 

 

24.  23/01709/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

External alterations to unauthorised front terrace along with installation of metal railings 

38 New Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Michael White 

 

 

25.  23/01721/CLE Charlbury and Finstock APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness to allow residential dwelling house without an agricultural occupancy 

restriction. 

Lees Rest Bungalow Woodstock Road Charlbury 

Mr Robert Potter 

 

 

26.  23/01735/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of solar panels, four to the kitchen roof and three to the garden room roof. 

The Forge 24 Lower High Street Burford 

Mrs Diane Fowler 

 

 

27.  23/01826/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of solar panels, four to the kitchen roof and three to the garden room roof. 

The Forge 24 Lower High Street Burford 

Mrs Diane Fowler 

 

 

Page 34



28.  23/01741/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of semi-below ground garage and associated external works. 

High Cleeve Over Norton Chipping Norton 

Mr M Stobart 

 

 

29.  23/01747/S73 Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 22/02893/FUL to allow 

changes to the fenestration and internal layout 

Land (E) 442763 (N) 222118 Glympton Oxfordshire 

Mr R Mills 

 

 

30.  23/01779/HHD The Bartons APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear and side extension with roof lights 

3 Dorn Close Middle Barton Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Gilpin 

 

 

31.  23/01780/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations including works to doors and windows, addition of roof light 

and repairs to carriage archway (part retrospective) 

Flat 6 West Street Chipping Norton 

Grant and Milne 

 

 

32.  23/01781/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Demolition of extension and erection of single storey side extension 

1 Park Farm Cottage  Park Road Over Kiddington 

Mr Matthew Fielden 

 

 

33.  23/01782/FUL Kingham, Rollright and Enstone WDN 

  

Use of existing farm track from C13400 (adjacent to New Gardens Cottage) as temporary 

construction access track (two years) to serve Maplewood Barn plus formation of 

approximately 250m of new access track (95m in agricultural land and 155m within residential 

garden). 

Maplewood Barn Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Mr Nick Angel 

 

 

Page 35



34.  23/01784/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Proposed loft conversion with roof lights 

19 Pittick Close Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr Bharadhwaj 

 

 

35.  23/01785/HHD Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey rear extension with side curtain walling, dormer windows and 

internal alterations. 

20 Manor Farm Close Kingham Chipping Norton 

Mr Greg  Elliott 

 

 

36.  23/01796/S73 Burford APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission 22/02732/FUL to allow 

design changes to include solar panels 

Tadpole Farm Taynton Burford 

Mr and Mrs Bainbridge 

 

 

37.  23/01830/CND Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Discharge of Condition 4 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities) of 

planning permission 22/00945/FUL 

Kitebrook Preparatory School Kitebrook House Little Compton 

The Prep Schools Trust 

 

 

38.  23/01841/HHD Burford APP 

  

Erection of a single storey side extension 

4 Arkel Close Fulbrook Burford 

Mr And Mrs A Browning 

 

 

39.  23/01842/CND Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (plan showing extent of any proposed works to the protected trees 

on site) of planning permission 22/02258/HHD 

Perlin Cottage Enstone Road Little Tew 

Mr Percival Bradley 

 

 

Page 36



40.  23/01861/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Erection of single storey garden room 

Pippins 6 High Street Milton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Savita Holt 

 

 

41.  23/01910/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Erection of a greenhouse 

1 Horseshoe Lane Chadlington Chipping Norton 

Mr Stephen Smith 

 

 

42.  23/01926/NMA Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations and conversion of existing farm buildings to form a single dwelling with car port, 

guest suite and associated outbuildings. Provision of outdoor swimming pool, vehicular and 

pedestrian accesses, and landscaping works (non-material amendment to allow changes to 

fenestration, addition of a flue in studio, plant room extension and new sauna added adjacent 

to Barn 02). 

Land North Of Home Farm Chastleton 

Katya Gurova And Kevin Cornils 

 

 

43.  23/02103/NMA Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey rear extension replacing conservatory. First floor rear extension (non material 

amendment to 22/03381/HHD to allow Juliet style doors in place of first floor rear windows). 

Korpatri 9A Fairspear Road Leafield 

Mr And Mrs David Green 

 

 

44.  23/02089/NMA Kingham, Rollright and Enstone APP 

  

Conversion of existing barns to form four residential properties, the conversion of a barn to 

form ancillary accommodation and the erection of a car port and ancillary works (Amended) 

(non-material amendment to 19/02470/FUL to allow changes to rear extension of C2 and 

C3). 

Chapel House Farm Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Adalta Real 

 

 

Page 37



45.  23/02248/NMA Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of side conservatory and rear extension. Construction of single storey rear 

extension (Non Material Amendment to allow changes in design of kitchen window and minor 

alterations to internal layout) 

Repton House Hastings Hill Churchill 

Mr J Wickham 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 38


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions

